
STATUTORY LICENSING 
COMMITTEE

2.30 PM WEDNESDAY, 28TH NOVEMBER, 2018

COUNCIL CHAMBER

This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on (01685) 

725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk.

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be 
found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers.

A G E N D A

1. Apologies for absence 

2. Declarations of Interest 
Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct

Note:

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 
as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave

3. Application for a New Premises Licence 
To consider report of the Deputy Chief Executive 3 - 34

4. Any other business deemed Urgent by the Chair 

COMPOSITION: Councillor:      H Barrett (Chair) 

Councillors:    C Tovey and D Chaplin

Together with appropriate officers

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

STATUTORY LICENSING COMMITTEE

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

APPLICATION FOR A NEW PREMISES LICENCE – 
NOODLES & RICE & ALL THINGS SPICE VAN @ 
LAYBY OUTSIDE THE CELTIC BAR, ABERDARE 
ROAD, MERTHYR TYDFIL

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1 An application has been made for a new premises licence in respect of Noodles & 
Rice & All Things Spice van @ layby outside the Celtic Bar, Aberdare Road, Merthyr 
Tydfil.  During the consultation period, representations were received therefore the 
application is being brought before the Licensing Sub-Committee for determination.

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS that

2.1 In determining the application, Councillors must have regard to the four licensing 
objectives on which the Licensing Act 2003 is based.  These are:

 The prevention of crime and disorder
 Ensuring public safety
 Prevention of public nuisance, and
 The protection of children from harm.

Councillors must have consideration to the representations and take such steps it 
considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.

The steps are:

Date Written 12th November 2018
Report Author Joanne Baber
Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt
Committee Date 28th November 2018

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



(i) To grant the licence;
(ii) To grant the licence subject to such conditions modified to such extent as the 

Authority considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives;
(iii) To reject the application.

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

3.1 An application has been received from Lesa Humphries for a new premises licence 
under the Licensing Act 2003 in respect of the above named premises.

3.2 The application proposed the following licensable activities and hours:

Late Night Refreshment & Opening Hours

Thursday to Sunday – 11pm to 3.30am

Seasonal Variations

All Bank Holidays plus 23rd, 24th, 27th & 31st December – 11pm to 3.30am

Please see appendix for the full application and plans.

3.3 In accordance with procedure, South Wales Police, South Wales Fire Service, 
Cwmtaf University Health Board and the Council’s Public Health, Trading Standards, 
Licensing, Planning and Children’s Safeguarding Unit were consulted on the 
application.  An advertisement was placed in the legal notices section of the Merthyr 
Express and notices were displayed at the premises and on the Council’s website in 
respect of the application.

4.0 REPRESENTATIONS

Responsible Authorities

4.1 Representations were received from South Wales Police (see appendix).

Other Persons

4.2 Representations were received from Asbri Planning (see appendix).

5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S)

5.1 There are no financial implications.

6.0 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT

Page 4



6.1 It has been identified that an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) is not required for 
the purpose of this report.

ELLIS COOPER
DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE

CLLR GERAINT THOMAS
PORTFOLIO MEMBER FOR 
REGENERATION &PUBLIC 

PROTECTION 

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution? 

No

. 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Our Ref: BD/PR18.281
Date: 05 November 2018

Licensing Section
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council
Civic Centre
Castle Street
Merthyr Tydfil
CF47 8AN

By email: licensing@merthyr.gov.uk

Dear Sir / Madam

LICENSING ACT 2003 - APPLICATION FOR A NEW PREMISES LICENCE TO BE GRANTED UNDER 
THE LICENSING ACT 2003
NOODLES & RICE & ALL THINGS SPICE FOOD VAN AT LAYBY OUTSIDE THE CELTIC BAR, 
ABERDARE ROAD, MERTHYR TYDFIL

I refer to the above application for a new premises licence and write to object to the application on 
behalf of our client, Mr Murat Ongun.

By way of background, since 2007, Mr Ongun, has successfully operated a mobile hot food/burger van
from the car park serving Merthyr Rugby Football Club, approximately 50m from the proposed site of 
the new premises licence. His van benefits from planning permission (ref. P/07/0103 granted April 2007) 
and a premises licence. 

The objection to the application is made on a number of grounds, as set out below.

Residential Amenity
The proposed new food van is proposed to be sited approximately 45m from existing residential 
bungalows, located at Cadlan Bethel, off Tramroad Side. These bungalows are predominantly occupied 
by elderly persons and the closest units are orientated with direct uninterrupted views towards the site 
of the proposed van. The proposed food van is sited directly adjacent to an outside seating area 
associated with The Celtic Bar which is bounded by a low wall. It is highly likely that customers of the 
new van would congregate around this seating area using the wall and seating area to wait for and 
consume their food. Noise and disturbance from this activity in the evening and night and particularly 
in the early hours is highly likely to have a detrimental impact on the residential amenity of these elderly 
residents living in such close proximity to the proposed food van.

Anti-Social Behaviour
As noted, the proposed food van is to be sited directly adjacent to The Celtic Bar, and in very close 
proximity to the Kirk House nightclub. These premises have long been a focus for anti-social behaviour 
at closing time and beyond such that the Police have been required to attend to numerous incidents in 
the last 12 months alone. The siting of a food van in such close proximity to these premises will only 
give rise to an increase in anti-social behaviour as people will congregate in the area and disperse from 
the area more slowly.

Highways Safety
The food van is proposed to be sited in a layby which is identified as a designated loading bay in 
connection with the Celtic Bar, as indicated by road lettering and 2 no. sign posts which state ‘Loading 

Unit 9 Oak Tree Court

Mulberry Drive

Cardiff Gate Business Park

Cardiff  

CF23 8RS

Tel: 029 2073 2652

www.asbriplanning.co.uk

Page 27



Only’. The use of the layby for the siting of a food van will result in the loss of this loading facility such 
that deliveries to the Celtic Bar may be required to take place from the street, with a resultant impact 
on highways safety and capacity near this busy junction which could result in delays and at worst, road 
traffic accidents.

A review of the accident record within close proximity of the proposed food van reveals a shocking 
number of serious accidents, including one fatal incident near the site of the proposed van as illustrated 
at Figure 1 below.  

Figure 1 – Crash Map Highway Safety Record

Interrogation of the recorded incidents show an alarming number of pedestrian incidents involving 
collisions in the early hours between vehicles and pedestrians emanating from The Celtic Bar and Kirk 
House nightclub. In one incident in November 2017, a collision between a car and customers of the 
Celtic Bar resulted in two pedestrians being hospitalised.

It is considered that the granting of a licence for a new food van in this location would encourage 
customers of the Celtic Bar and Kirk House to linger in the area and increase the likelihood of further 
accidents and incidents of anti-social behaviour.

Hours of Operation
It is noted that the application for a new licence requests the following opening hours;

Late Night Refreshment & Opening Hours
- Thursday to Sunday – 11pm to 3.30am

Seasonal Variation
- All Bank Holidays plus 23rd, 24th 27th & 31st December – 11pm to 3.30am

It is understood that the Kirk House typically closes at 2am and is licensed until 2.30am, and it is 
therefore unclear as to why a premises licence is required until 3.30am. The seasonal variation is identical 
and therefore represents no variation at all.

Conversely, Mr Ongun’s license allows him to trade until 2.30am Friday and Saturday and to 1.30am on 
a Sunday, albeit he does not typically open on a Sunday. 

Page 28



It is considered that the proposed hours of 3.30am from Thursday to Sunday is excessive and will result 
in customers of the bar and nightclub lingering in the area for longer, thus causing further noise and 
disturbance into the early hours and increasing the likelihood of further anti-social behaviour, 
disturbance to local elderly residents and traffic accidents.

For all of the above reasons, it is considered that a new premises licence should not be granted.

I look forward to receiving acknowledgement of this objection letter and I would be grateful if you could 
keep me informed of any significant developments.

Yours sincerely,

Barrie Davies
Director

cc Councillor Tanya Skinner
Councillor Chris Barry
Councillor Paul Brown
Councillor David Chaplin
Councillor Geraint Thomas
Councillor Clive Jones

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Licensing Act 2003

SUMMARY OF LOCAL PREMISES LICENCES – NOODLES & RICE & 
ALL THINGS SPICE VAN @ THE LAYBY OUTSIDE THE CELTIC BAR, 

ABERDARE ROAD

Name & Address of Premises Licensed Hours

The Celtic Bar
Dynevor Street
Merthyr Tydfil

(Public House/Nightclub)

Supply of alcohol ON the premises only / Live Music (Indoors) 
/ Recorded Music (Indoors)
Monday to Thursday – 11.00am to midnight
Friday & Saturday – 11.00am to 1.00am
Sunday – noon to midnight

Opening hours
Monday to Thursday – 11.00am to 00.30am
Friday & Saturday – 11.00am to 1.30am
Sunday – noon to 00.30am

Kooler
104 High Street
Dynevor Street
Merthyr Tydfil

(Nightclub)

Supply of alcohol ON premises 
Monday to Friday – 11.00am to 2.00am
Saturday – 11.00am to 2.30am
Sunday – noon to 00.30am

Recorded Music (Indoors) / Live Music (Indoors) / 
Entertainment Similar / Opening Hours
Monday to Friday – 11.00am to 2.00am
Saturday – 11.00am to 3.00am
Sunday – noon to 00.30am

*Seasonal Variations
Sundays preceding a Bank Holiday – Opening Hours, Live 
Music, Recorded Music & Entertainment Similar 1.30am 
finish, and the supply of alcohol ON the premises 1.00am 
finish.

Merthyr Tydfil Rugby Club
Dynevor Street
Merthyr Tydfil

(Members Club)

Excludes the Foyer & Hall areas on 
Friday, Saturday & Sunday.

Supply of alcohol ON and OFF the premises / Recorded Music 
(Indoors) / Live Music (Indoors) / Dance (Indoors)
Monday to Thursday – 11.00am to midnight
Friday – 11.0am to 00.30am
Saturday – 11.00am to midnight
Sunday – noon to midnight

Opening Hours
Monday to Thursday – 11.00am to 00.30am
Friday – 11.00am to 1.00am
Saturday – 11.00am to 00.30am
Sunday – noon to 00.30am

Page 31



2

Plays (Indoors) / Films (Indoors) / Indoor Sport / Boxing or 
Wrestling (indoors)
Monday to Saturday – 11.00am to midnight
Sunday – noon to midnight

*Seasonal Variations
Supply of alcohol & other licensable activities on Bank 
Holidays, Christmas Eve & New Years Eve 1.00am finish.
Opening Hours on Bank Holidays, Christmas Eve & New Years 
Eve 1.30am finish.

Merthyr Tydfil Rugby Club
Dynevor Street
Merthyr Tydfil

(Public House)

Supply of alcohol ON & OFF the premises / Recorded Music 
(Indoors) / 
Friday – 11.0am to 1.30am
Saturday – 11.00am to midnight
Sunday – noon to midnight

Live Music (Indoors) / Dance (Indoors)
Friday – 11.00am to 00.30am
Saturday – 11.00am to midnight
Sunday – noon to midnight

Opening Hours
Friday – 11.00am to 1.30am
Saturday – 11.00am to 00.30am
Sunday – noon to midnight

Plays (Indoors) / Films (Indoors) / Indoor Sport / Boxing or 
Wrestling (indoors)
Friday & Saturday – 11.00am to midnight
Sunday – noon to midnight

*Seasonal Variations
1 hour extra on Good Friday, Bank Holidays & Saturdays 
preceding Bank Holidays, Christmas Eve & Boxing Day.

Food Van outside Merthyr Tydfil 
Rugby Club
Dynevor Street
Merthyr Tydfil

(Takeaway)

Late Night Refreshment
Friday & Saturday – 11.00pm to 2.30am
Sunday – 11.00pm to 1.00am

Court of Requests
Dynevor Street
Merthyr Tydfil

(Public House)

Supply of alcohol ON & OFF the premises
Monday to Saturday – 10.00am to midnight
Sunday – 10.00am to 11.30pm

Opening Hours

Page 32



3

Monday to Saturday – 10.00am to 00.30am
Sunday – 10.00am to midnight

Recorded Music (Indoors)
Monday to Saturday – 3.00pm to midnight
Sunday – 3.00pm to 11.30pm

*Seasonal Variations
One hour extra on Bank Holidays & Saturdays preceding Bank 
Holidays & Christmas Eve.

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Application for a New Premises Licence
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5


